
 

 High Peak Borough Council 

 
 

 
CLIMATE CHANGE WORKING GROUP (HPBC) AGENDA 
 

Date: 
 

Thursday, 17 March 2022 

Time: 
 

6.30 pm 

Venue: 

 

Virtual 

 

1. Apologies for Absence  

2. Declarations of Interest  

 1. Disclosable Pecuniary Interests 
2. ‘Other’ Interests 

 

3. Minutes of the previous meeting (Pages 3 - 6) 

4. Introduction of Climate Change Officer  

5. Actions since the last meeting - verbal  

6. Vision Derbyshire Climate Change Strategy (Pages 7 - 18) 

7. Date of next meeting - 28 April 2022  

 
MARK TRILLO 

EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR AND MONITORING OFFICER 
 

Membership of Climate Change Working Group (HPBC) 

Councillor T Ashton Councillor A Barrow 
Councillor J Collins Councillor C Farrell 

Councillor L Grooby Councillor M Hall 
Councillor I Huddlestone Councillor T Kemp 
Councillor D Lomax Councillor A McKeown 

Councillor G Oakley Councillor K Thomson 
Councillor S Thomson Councillor E Thrane 

Councillor J Todd  
 



Public Document Pack



This page is intentionally left blank



1 
 

  High Peak Borough Council 

 
 

CLIMATE CHANGE WORKING GROUP (HPBC) 
 
 

Meeting: Thursday, 20 January 2022 at 6.30 pm in  

 
Present: Councillor A McKeown (in the Chair) 

 
 Councillors A Barrow, J Collins, C Farrell, L Grooby, M Hall, I Huddlestone, 

T Kemp, D Lomax, G Oakley, K Thomson, S Thomson, E Thrane and J Todd 

 
 An apology for absence was received from Councillor T Ashton 

 
22/10 CHAIR'S ANNOUNCEMENT 

(Agenda Item 10) 
 

The Chair confirmed that the meeting was being broadcast live to the 

internet via the Council’s website and was capable of repeated viewing. The 
images and sound recording may be used for training purposes within the 
Council. All were asked to keep to the speaking guidelines which were 

outlined.  Any views expressed by any speaker in the meeting are the 
speaker’s own and do not necessarily reflect the views of High Peak 

Borough Council. 
 

22/3 MINUTES OF THE PREVIOUS MEETING 

(Agenda Item 3) 
 

RESOLVED: 
 
That the minutes of the meeting held on 18 November 2021 be approved as 

a correct record. 
 

 
22/4 ACTIONS SINCE THE LAST MEETING - VERBAL 

(Agenda Item 4) 
 

The Chair provided an update on actions since the last meeting which 

included: 
 

 A workshop was held with Anthesis in December and further workshops will 
be on-going, including a business specific one in High Peak – details of 
which are in the business newsletter 

 The Council had taken part in the UK100 Countryside Climate Change 
Network Group as well as a roundtable discussion around issues coming 
forward in the government white paper, specifically around off grid fuel 
supplies 

 Training had been undertaken around the climate change plan scorecard 
would be released next week 

 
22/5 EV CHARGING IN DERBYSHIRE AND THE UK (ALEC CURLEY - 

JACOBS) 

(Agenda Item 5) 
 Page 3

Agenda Item 3




Climate Change Work ing Group (HPBC) 
Thursday, 20 January 2022 

 

2 
 

Alec Curley from Jacobs made a presentation to members around EV 
Charging in Derbyshire and the UK.  Jacobs had been commissioned by 
DCC to help with the framework and transition to electric vehicle charging.  

The presentation set out the policy and strategic context for the project, the 
proposed strategy objectives, barriers to EV update (myths vs reality), 

current status, the problems that local authorities and trying to solve, EV 
Charging points – revenue analysis by type, key enablers to success, public 
charging / options, forecasted numbers, existing charging sites, public and 

private sector sites. 
 

The Chair made reference to specific issues in High Peak in relation to 
terraced housing and parking challenges, the topography of the area, as 
well as for the very rural parts, whether there is enough power to enable the 

infrastructure to be implemented.  Members were advised that the rural 
network was challenging and that particularly for tourist hotspots, 

assessments around upgrades would be made on a site by site basis. At the 
moment, demand was low and upgrade costs were high, and work needed 
to be undertaken with network operators, as well as being more creative in 

the generation of energy – solar, wind etc. 
 
Regarding charging points on dwellings, there were lots of innovations 

coming to market and products to addresses issues, including the use of 
existing car parks as hubs.  Technology was also moving forward around 

HCVs and improvements and solutions to battery options, range, size and 
disposal / re-use.  Working with partners to identify solutions to on-street 
charging was welcomed, although concerns were expressed around the 

reliability and access to existing charging points at NHS facili ties. 
 

Consultation was on-going with stakeholders and a further presentation 
would be made to members in due course. 
 

Alex was thanked for his attendance and presentation. 
 

22/6 CLIMATE CHANGE ACTION PLAN - PERFORMANCE MANAGEMENT 
(DAVID SMITH) 

(Agenda Item 6) 
 

David Smith provided an update around performance management for the 

Climate Change Action Plan, which included: 
 

 Regular updates from Anthesis as part of the scatter tool 

 Actions submitted to the Transformation Board – regular updates will be 
provided consistent with general corporate updates 

 Further work done around firmer targets and baseline –it was proposed that 
a spreadsheet produced by Future Partnerships be adopted as the council’s 
methodology, which would also provide benchmarking opportunities.  It was 
noted that there would be a need to apportion the emissions between the 
two the two authorities. To start with, the tool could be completed using 
backdated information from 2019/20 to give baseline data and a consistent 
methodology going forward,  This would then be incorporated into the 
corporate monitoring processes. 

 
The Chair noted that this would form part of the Corporate Performance 

Management. A score on the plan would be received shortly by UK100 and Page 4




Climate Change Work ing Group (HPBC) 
Thursday, 20 January 2022 

 

3 
 

their plan is to move and develop a mechanism to score actions that have 
come from the plans.  It was noted however, that the council’s strategy was 
not included in the scoring process for this year, 

 
RESOLVED: 

 
That the update be noted. 
 

22/7 CLIMATE CHANGE UPDATE (DAVID SMITH) 

(Agenda Item 7) 
 

The draft report from Anthesis had been received which was an analysis of 
the procurement spend.  Next steps to go through that with finance and 

procurement colleagues and others, including, the cost of fleet and AES as 
major spends and finalise the report which would be submitted to members. 

 
A summary of the Climate Action Plan had been circulated which had been 
edited by the Plain English society and the Comms Team, some better 

pictures may also be incorporated in due course.  A consultancy has been 
commissioned to produce an animated explanatory video to explain the 

council’s strategy and advice to local residents. 
 
The draft strategy was agreed and an EoI would be submitted to UK100 to 

work with local authorities around engaging and working with local 
communities and would also include training. 
 

Met with Derbyshire Wildlife Trust around the Nature Recovery Strategy.  A 
mapping exercise has been started and DWT to look at what DCC are 

proposing to ensure supplementary work being done rather than duplication.   
 
It was commented that given the aim of net zero by 2030, there is an 

emphasis on small acts, seems unbalanced. 
 

Generally, an update around practical actions being taken now was 
requested, such as retro fitting homes, verges etc. 
 

RESOLVED: 
 

That the update be noted. 
 
 

22/8 UPDATE FROM HIGH PEAK GREEN NETWORK 

(Agenda Item 8) 
 

Laurie James from High Peak Green Network provided an update around 
the work of the High Peak Green Network, which is a network of 7 green 

groups from throughout the community.  The group meets on a bi-monthly 
basis and exists to proactively make things happen, examples of which were 

given.  The role of HPGN as a critical friend to the council as it stives to 
deliver its net zero commitment was set out. The group has submitted 
comments on the internal and boroughwide climate action plans, the impact 

of and responses to are awaited.  More emphasis on measurable targets 
would be welcomed, together with the council’s commitment to consult.  The Page 5




Climate Change Work ing Group (HPBC) 
Thursday, 20 January 2022 

 

4 
 

appointment of a Climate Change Officer was also welcomed together with 
further open and regular engagement.   
 

The Chair thanked Laurie for his presentation and confirmed that the 
Climate Change Officer would be in position from early March 2022.  Ways 

in which to involve a wider range of interested people were discussed and 
reference made to the additional consultation and engagement support from 
UK100 and the Youth Climate Pathfinder Forum of High Peak and 

Derbyshire Dales. 
 

The Chair thanked Laurie for his presentation and attendance. 
 

22/9 DATE OF NEXT MEETING 

(Agenda Item 9) 
 

RESOLVED: 
 
That the next meeting be held on 24 February 2022 at 6.30 p.m. via Teams 

 
 

The meeting concluded at 7.55 pm 
 
 

 
 
 
CHAIR 

 

Page 6



CONTROLLED 
 

1 
 

Draft document 
 

Vision Derbyshire 
Achieving Net Zero Emissions across Derbyshire (2022-2025) 

 

Introduction  

Vision Derbyshire 

Vision Derbyshire is a shared commitment across Derbyshire’s county, district and borough 

councils, to strategically collaborate to improve outcomes for people and places, speak with 
one voice as a county, and coordinate our resources better and more sustainably. 

For people and places, Vision Derbyshire will: 

 Create a fair society for Derbyshire where everyone has opportunities 

 Enable people to better manage their quality of life, health and wellbeing 

 Exceed climate change targets for people 

 Develop an inclusive and diverse economy for Derbyshire 

 Empower communities to drive sustainable change 

Within Vision Derbyshire there are four key workstreams, one of which is Live and work 

sustainably, with an objective of embedding sustainable and green strategic spatial 
planning Derbyshire-wide, including for housing and transport.  

Councils across Derbyshire are all taking action to tackle climate change, through reducing 

emissions from their own estates and operations, and playing their role in reducing county-

wide emissions. With the increasing need to accelerate action on tackling climate change, 

the development and adoption of a joint climate change strategy has been identified as an 

opportunity to establish common ambitions and priorities, foster collaboration and resource 
sharing, and provide consistency in delivery.  

Purpose and Scope of the Strategy 

The purpose of this Strategy is to present a vision for Derbyshire to thrive and prosper as a 

net zero county. It has been developed through collaborative working between the county, 

district and borough councils across Derbyshire.  

The Strategy sets out what needs to be done to reduce emissions across the county to net 

zero by 2050, or sooner, and how Derbyshire’s councils will work to achieve this through a 
series of ambitions and priorities, supported by an action plan.  

What do we mean by Net Zero? 

A ‘net zero’ emissions scenario is one in which we have taken all viable action to 

reduce emissions to zero in the first instance, and any remaining or residual emissions 

by the target date will be offset i.e. removed from the atmosphere, as a last resort. 

Page 7

Agenda Item 6



CONTROLLED 
 

2 
 

The Strategy looks at how to reduce Derbyshire’s county-wide carbon emissions, taking into 

account those emissions generated directly in the county and those created outside of 
Derbyshire and which the county is, in part, responsible for.  

The public sector is estimated to be directly responsible for 2% of the UK’s emissions, with 

influence over a further 40%. As such, this Strategy focuses principally on what councils can 

do about the county-wide emissions that they have direct control or influence over, but also 

considers wider opportunities where councils can encourage, promote and facilitate action 

by others – including central government as well as businesses, communities and individuals 
across the county.   

The Strategy covers the period 2022 to 2025 and is accompanied by a live action plan. It is 

not intended to replace existing climate change strategies and plans in place within 

individual councils, but instead will complement these and set out key common areas of 
collaboration.  

As well as reducing emissions across Derbyshire, delivery of the Strategy will help to 

address the wider key issues facing society, including improving and future-proofing homes, 

businesses, infrastructure and transport, reversing the decline in biodiversity, promoting 

community health and wellbeing, and the facilitation of a sustainable and robust low carbon 
economy.   

Councils can’t deliver all of the necessary actions required to reduce emissions alone. 

Delivering the Strategy will therefore require collaboration with and across partners, citizens, 

businesses and communities. 

This Strategy focuses on reducing emissions, but we also recognise the importance of 

adapting to climate change and protecting and enhancing the natural environment.  These 
aspects are being explored separately to this Strategy. 

Existing Collaboration  

Derbyshire Environment and Climate Change Framework 

During 2019, councils across Derbyshire came together to develop the Derbyshire 

Environment and Climate Change Framework. The Framework set out a common approach 

for Derbyshire councils to reduce greenhouse gas emissions to levels which are consistent 

with the UK’s commitment of net zero by 2050. The Framework contained a number of 

themes under which strategies and actions could be agreed, these were: 

Energy Travel Resources  Air Quality Economy Natural 
Environment 

Partnership 
working 

 

Linked to, and in addition to the Derbyshire Environment and Climate Change Framework, 

councils in Derbyshire have been working together to develop a number of joint strategies to 

tackle climate change and wider sustainability issues at county and regional levels. This 
includes:  

 The Air Quality Strategy (2020-2030) – Developed through the Health and 

Wellbeing Board, the Strategy sets out how partners will work together to reduce the 
health impact of poor air quality for the people of Derby and Derbyshire. 

Page 8



CONTROLLED 
 

3 
 

 The Derbyshire Economic Partnership COVID-19 Recovery Strategy (2021-

2025) – Developed by the Derbyshire Economic Partnership to identify the priorities 

to protect and grow Derbyshire’s economy in a post-COVID world. 

 Natural Capital and Biodiversity Strategy for Derbyshire (due to be published in 

Autumn 2022) – The study will consider all the natural capital assets that are key to 

the county’s future prosperity, health, and wellbeing. It will identify the priority areas 

for the protection, restoration, and enhancement of natural capital assets and take 
climate change implications into account.   

 D2N2 Energy Strategy (2019-2030) - This Strategy was developed by the D2N2 

Local Enterprise Partnership and is being implemented in collaboration with Midlands 

Energy Hub. The Strategy sets out how the region can align with national and 

regional ambitions to expand renewable and low carbon energy development and 
achieve a net zero future. 

 Renewable Energy Study for Derbyshire (due to be published in Summer 2022) 

– This study will identify the renewable energy opportunities in the county, including 
which technologies are most suitable and where they could be located. 

In addition to these strategies, a range of specialist working groups exist that focus on 

specific areas and topics, including sustainable travel, low carbon energy, and improving the 
energy efficiency of homes.  

Existing Climate Change Strategies Across Derbyshire  

In addition to the collaborative working described in the previous section, councils have 

recently developed their own individual strategies and action plans to tackle climate change 

at county, district and borough levels. This Strategy is designed to complement individual 

council-level strategies and plans, through setting out key common themes and areas of 
collaboration.  A summary of individual strategies and plans is listed below.  

Council  Key Climate Change Strategy or Plan  

Amber Valley 
Borough Council  

The council has in place a Carbon Reduction Management 
Programme and Action Plan, which set out the council’s plans to 
implement carbon reduction measures across all its assets, 
operations, and spheres of influence within the borough. 

Bolsover District 
Council  

The council has in place a Carbon Reduction Plan 2019-2030, 
which sets out how the council aims to work with partners, 
business and communities to achieve net zero.  

Chesterfield Borough 
Council  

The council has in place a Climate Change Action Plan 2020-
2023 which sets out measures that the council will carry out to 
monitor, reduce and decarbonise its own activities and support 
the transition of Chesterfield to a low carbon borough 

Derbyshire County 
Council 

The council has in place a Climate Change Strategy: Achieving 
Net Zero (2021-2025), which sets out how the council will work to 
become a net zero council by 2032, or sooner, and play its part in 
decarbonising the county by 2050.    

Derbyshire Dales 
District Council   

The council has in place a Climate Change Strategy and Action 
Plan, 2020 to 2030, which sets out an action plan for the council 
to become net zero by 2030.   

Erewash Borough 
Council  

Although no formal climate change plan exists at present, the aim 
to support the wider climate change agenda to  
facilitate a better environment for everyone is included in the 
council’s Corporate Plan 2021-2023. 

Page 9

https://data.climateemergency.uk/media/data/plans/amber-valley-borough-council-35fda7c.pdf
https://data.climateemergency.uk/media/data/plans/amber-valley-borough-council-35fda7c.pdf
https://data.climateemergency.uk/media/data/plans/bolsover-district-council-00f5142.pdf
https://www.chesterfield.gov.uk/health-and-environment/weather-and-climate-change/climate-change.aspx?from=menu
https://www.chesterfield.gov.uk/health-and-environment/weather-and-climate-change/climate-change.aspx?from=menu
https://www.derbyshire.gov.uk/environment/climate-change/our-journey-to-carbon-zero/our-journey-to-net-zero-carbon.aspx
https://www.derbyshire.gov.uk/environment/climate-change/our-journey-to-carbon-zero/our-journey-to-net-zero-carbon.aspx
https://www.derbyshiredales.gov.uk/images/C/Climate_Change_Strategy_and_Action_Plan.pdf
https://www.derbyshiredales.gov.uk/images/C/Climate_Change_Strategy_and_Action_Plan.pdf
http://www.erewash.gov.uk/images/Performance_and_Community/Corporate_Plan_2021_to_2023.pdf


CONTROLLED 
 

4 
 

High Peak Borough 
Council  

The council has in place its Towards Carbon Neutrality 2030: 
Climate Change Plan, which sets out an action plan for reducing 
the council’s own emissions and also its role in reducing 
emissions across the Borough.  

North East Derbyshire 
District Council  

The council has in place a Climate Change Action Plan 2019-
2030, which sets out steps for achieving the vision of “A district 
that balances economic prosperity with environmental 
sustainability, improving the lives of our  
people and our environment today and in the future”   

South Derbyshire 
District Council  

The council has in place a Climate and Environment Strategy and 
supporting Action Plan,  which aligns to and supports the 
Corporate Plan Commitments of "Our Environment, Our People, 
Our Future" 

 

Delivering the Strategy  

In order to effectively deliver the Strategy, councils across Derbyshire will work together to 

deliver projects and initiatives that align with and achieve the ambitions, targets and 

principles set out in Section xx. To deliver the Strategy, a range of actions and projects will 

be identified and delivered collaboratively by the councils during the Strategy period.     

The Strategy will be co-ordinated and monitored by the Vision Derbyshire Climate Change 

Officers Group, which is comprised of officers from the county, district and borough Councils 

in Derbyshire. This Officers Group reports into the wider Vision Derbyshire governance 
structure, ensuring oversight and accountability of activities and projects being delivered.   

The councils also play a key role in bringing together residents, businesses, academic, 

public, community and voluntary sectors to plan and implement climate action. We will use 

our leadership, partnership building and influencing role to facilitate and promote actions 
across all sectors and groups.   

The councils will also work with partners and other stakeholders to educate, raise awareness 

and engage and involve people within the local community.  

To deliver the action required to play their part in reducing emissions across the county to 

net zero, councils will need to work together to identify and prepare for external funding 

opportunities. This will help the councils to maximise our collective success in securing 
funding and other support for delivering action on decarbonisation.    

Furthermore, the councils will work together to utilise our links with central government to 

lobby for additional support for local government on this agenda and to secure investment 
for decarbonisation in Derbyshire. 

Derbyshire’s Emissions 

There is no doubt that emissions across the world need to be cut as a matter of urgency and 

that if global temperature rises are to be kept to a level at which it is estimated ‘we can 

manage’ then emissions need to be reduced sharply over the next decade and to net zero 
by 2050. 

The UK has legal targets to: 

 Reduce greenhouse gas emissions by 78% by 2035 compared to 1990 levels as set 

out in the sixth carbon budget (to include the UK’s chare of international aviation and 

shipping emissions) 

Page 10

https://www.highpeak.gov.uk/ClimateChange
https://www.highpeak.gov.uk/ClimateChange
https://www.ne-derbyshire.gov.uk/documents/climate-change-action-plan-2019-2030/download
https://www.ne-derbyshire.gov.uk/documents/climate-change-action-plan-2019-2030/download
https://www.southderbyshire.gov.uk/our-services/environment/protecting-the-environment/climate-environment-emergency
https://www.southderbyshire.gov.uk/our-services/environment/protecting-the-environment/climate-environment-emergency


CONTROLLED 
 

5 
 

 Reduce greenhouse gas emissions to net zero by 2050 

Derbyshire’s county-wide target of net zero by 2050 is aligned with the UK’s legal 
commitment to deliver net zero by 2050.  

In 2019, Derbyshire’s total greenhouse gas emissions across the county amounted to 7.2 

million tonnes of CO2
1. This works out at 9.0 tonnes per person compared to a UK average 

of 6.8 tonnes per person. Our biggest sources of emissions are from the industrial sector 

(including significant emissions from the county’s quarrying and cement industries), followed 

by the transport and domestic sectors. Figure 1 presents the split of these emissions 

sources, with more details provided in Appendix 1. It is worth noting that Derbyshire’s 

emissions aren’t just caused by activities inside the county, but also by the production of the 
goods and services outside it, which are bought in.  

 

Since 2005, Derbyshire’s county-wide emissions have fallen by 25%. However, emissions 

reductions need to be accelerated if the county is to be on course to deliver net zero by 

2050. 

Emissions data 
 

There are a number of datasets and modelling tools available that provide emissions data 
for the UK and for individual areas. The datasets vary according to the sources of 
information used, and also what is included and what is excluded. This complex array of 
datasets can lead to confusion about the quantity of emissions emitted in an area and 
inconsistency in reporting. 
 
The Department for Business, Energy and Industrial Strategy (BEIS) produces a 

                                                                 
1
 UK local authority and regional carbon dioxide emissions national statistics: 2005 to 2 019  

3,666.5 

349.7 140.8 

1,317.9 

1,876.1 

Derbyshire's carbon dioxide emissions  for 2019 by sector 
(ktCO2) 

Industry Total

Commercial Total

Public Sector Total

Domestic Total

Transport Total

Page 11

https://data.gov.uk/dataset/723c243d-2f1a-4d27-8b61-cdb93e5b10ff/uk-local-authority-and-regional-carbon-dioxide-emissions-national-statistics-2005-to-2019


CONTROLLED 
 

6 
 

breakdown of carbon dioxide emissions by Local Authority area as a subset of its annual 
inventory of greenhouse gas emissions. The nationally available data sets begin in 2005 
and, at the time of this Strategy’s production, the latest data set was for 2019.  Emissions 
from aviation, shipping and military transport are excluded from this data set as there is no 
obvious basis for allocation to local areas. For the purpose of this Strategy and to aid 
comparisons and consistency in measurement and decision-making, the BEIS data is 
being used as the core source of emission data for the county.    
 
Other sources of emission data include the Tyndall Centre and the Anthesis ScatterCities 
modelling tool.  
 

 

Strategic Vision and Priorities   

The strategic Vision for net zero, including common priorities, is presented in the following 
section, split by five key themes:  

 Local Authority Estate, Operations and Services  

 Strengthening the Low Carbon Economy 

 Decarbonising Derbyshire’s Housing 

 Sustainable Transport, Travel and Infrastructure 

 Waste and Resources.     

Local Authority Estate, Operations and Services 

Vision 

Derbyshire’s county, district and borough councils will become net-zero carbon organisations 

that lead by example in implementing and promoting sustainable and low carbon practices in 

their ways of working and service delivery. This will include ensuring carbon reduction is 

embedded as a core part of decision-making and commissioning, and improving the energy 

and carbon efficiency of council buildings, land and fleet, as well as in all of the services that 

the councils deliver on behalf of Derbyshire’s residents. All council employees and suppliers 

will understand the importance of reducing emissions, and their role in achieving these 
reductions. 

Priorities 

Individual councils across Derbyshire are producing and delivering their own climate change 

strategies and action plans to reduce their own operational emissions to net zero. This 

Strategy does not intend to replace these individual council-level strategies and action plans, 

but instead seeks to complement them and identify common priority themes where a 

collaborative approach can be taken to reduce council-level emissions. These themes 
include:     

 Training – the development and delivery of consistent climate change training 

materials and messaging relevant to all councils in Derbyshire.  

 Procurement – working together to develop and embed an approach to sustainable 

procurement to ensure environmental and social sustainability is embedded within all 

contracting and procurement activities.  

 Renewable and low carbon energy – collaborative research into opportunities and 

locations for the installation of renewable energy generation technologies (e.g. solar) 

on council-owned buildings and land.   

Page 12



CONTROLLED 
 

7 
 

 Planning – working together to develop appropriate guidance, policy and 

frameworks to ensure that planning measures for net zero buildings are integrated 

into Local Plans and wider planning activities.  

 Fleet – working together to facilitate low-carbon vehicle fleets across all Councils, 

including cars, vans and larger vehicles, and the infrastructure to support this.  

 Funding – working together to identify and secure funding (such as from central 

government) for climate change and low carbon projects and initiatives.      

Strengthening the Low Carbon Economy 

Vision 

There will be an acceleration in the transition to a zero carbon economy through low carbon 

recovery and good growth, the creation of more and better jobs in the low carbon and clean 

technology sectors, increased skill levels and the fostering of innovation within the county, 

and a reduction in energy consumption from all industrial and commercial sectors. The 

natural resources of the county will be rapidly used to expand renewable energy generation 
across the county. 

Priorities 

Derbyshire councils will work together and with partners, citizens, businesses and 
communities to:     

 Reduce manufacturing and construction emissions through energy efficiency 

improvements and expansion of new technologies, and promotion of fuel switching. 

 Promote net zero commercial and industrial building developments and retrofitting 

activities.   

 Support the adoption of large-scale and small-scale renewable energy generation in 

suitable locations. 

 Support the adoption of low carbon technologies for space and water heating. 

 Promote net zero and sustainable planning policies and practices in all planning 

activities.  

 Promote the use of LED lighting and energy efficient machinery and technology. 

 Foster innovation through the promotion of green sector businesses, and identifying, 

highlighting and signposting areas of green innovation.  

 Support academic and training institutions in the development and implementation of 

relevant training courses.   

 Promote and create skilled green jobs in Derbyshire to help reach net zero emissions 
and enable our local economy to grow and flourish. 

Decarbonising Derbyshire’s Housing  

Vision 

Through working with partners and external stakeholder groups, low and zero carbon homes 

will be created that reduce emissions but also provide economic and wellbeing benefits for 

our residents. This will be achieved through insulating homes, installing more efficient 

heating systems, reducing energy consumption, and facilitating behaviour change through 

the provision of support and information. There will also be support for the growth in green 

jobs to install these measures, and the councils will play their role in the expansion of small-
scale renewable energy generation in the domestic sector. 

Priorities 

Page 13



CONTROLLED 
 

8 
 

Derbyshire councils will work together and with partners, citizens, businesses and 
communities to:     

 Improve the EPC rating of homes, so that all owner occupier domestic properties are 

EPC rating C, or better, by 2035. 

 Promote the use of LED lighting and energy efficient white goods and electrical 

items. 

 Work to ensure all new houses are net zero through planning policy and guidance.  

 Work to accelerate the retrofitting of homes across the county. 

 Support the adoption of low carbon heating technologies. 

 Support the adoption of micro-energy generation on homes, such as solar 

photovoltaics (PV). 

 Support households in changing behaviours that lead to a reduction in energy and 

water use through information provision and tailored support and advice.    

 Support and help to address supply challenges and skills shortages in the sector.  

Sustainable Transport, Travel and Infrastructure 

Vision 

Working with partners and external stakeholder groups, the councils will deliver an ambitious 

low-carbon integrated transport system across the county that meets the needs of residents 

in accessing the places they work, live and socialise as well as improving air quality and 

delivering health and wellbeing benefits for Derbyshire’s residents. Derbyshire’s flexible, 

accessible, affordable and integrated transport system will enable everyone to make their 

journeys through active travel (walking and cycling), public transport or zero or low carbon 
private vehicles. 

Priorities 

Derbyshire councils will work together and with partners, citizens, businesses and 
communities to:     

 Accelerate the shift to electric vehicles through improving charging point 

infrastructure and promoting the uptake in these vehicles.    

 Reduce the modal share of cars, vans and motorbikes in travel. 

 Support the uptake of low and zero carbon transport for personal and business 

purposes. 

 Improve public transport services and infrastructure and increase its modal share.   

 Increase the modal share of active transport (walking and cycling). 

 Promote the use of zero carbon fuel sources for transport. 

 Decrease the distance travelled by road freight where possible and promote the use 

of more efficient vehicles. 

Waste and Resources 

Vision 

Derbyshire will have a more sustainable and circular economy-based system of resource 

management, where the councils place high value on our natural resources, whilst seeking 

to reduce our consumption and generation of resource and waste. The councils will 

encourage and work with others to establish innovative approaches to waste diversion, 
reuse and recycling. 

Page 14



CONTROLLED 
 

9 
 

Priorities 

Derbyshire councils will work together and with partners, citizens, businesses and 
communities to:     

 Reduce the amount of household and commercial waste, particularly packaging and 

food waste.   

 Divert more waste from landfill.  

 Increase levels of reuse and recycling across the county. 

 Collaborate in moving towards the circular economy. 

Carbon Offsetting and Sequestration  

Despite all efforts across Derbyshire to reduce emissions, it is anticipated there may be 

remaining residual emissions to be offset in order for Derbyshire to be a net zero county by 
2050.  

The councils will work with partners and wider stakeholders to maximise offsetting activities, 

for example, through carbon sequestration techniques as a short-term solution whilst we 
continue to seek and prioritise decarbonisation opportunities. 

Carbon sequestration reduces atmospheric levels of CO2 by capturing the gas and storing it 

so helping to limit climate change. CO2 can either be removed from the atmosphere using 

natural processes, or captured where it is created (e.g. in power plants or industrial 

processes) and then stored, for instance, underground. This is known as Carbon Capture, 
Utilisation and Storage (CCUS).    

In 2019, Derbyshire’s woodlands and other vegetation absorbed 0.13 million tonnes of CO2
2, 

which is a small amount when compared to annual emissions across the county of 7.2 

million tonnes of CO2 in the same year. In order to increase the amount of CO2 absorbed by 

woodlands and other vegetation in Derbyshire, the councils will:   

 Work with partners and wider stakeholder groups to increase tree cover across the 

county and restore peatlands and grasslands.  

 Promote a reduction in grazed grassland and increased areas of natural grassland 

sustainable arable farming. 

 Promote the adoption of farming practices which increase carbon sequestration by 

plants and soil and lead to fewer negative environmental impacts.  

 Promote and facilitate an increase in green spaces and tree coverage in urban areas.   

Derbyshire’s county, district and borough councils are currently working together to develop 

a natural capital and biodiversity strategy for Derbyshire. This project will take a close look at 

Derbyshire's natural assets – such as soil, minerals, air, water and biodiversity – assess 

what resources Derbyshire needs more of, where existing resources can be enhanced, and 

the measures needed to replace natural resources when they are used. This will identify the 
priority areas for the protection, restoration, and enhancement of our natural assets.  

Large scale CCUS processes are relatively new technologies which may become 

increasingly viable options for Derbyshire in the future. The councils will continue to work 

with partners and wider stakeholders to monitor and further explore improvements and 

                                                                 
2
 UK local authority and regional carbon dioxide emissions national statistics: 2005 to 2019  

Page 15

https://data.gov.uk/dataset/723c243d-2f1a-4d27-8b61-cdb93e5b10ff/uk-local-authority-and-regional-carbon-dioxide-emissions-national-statistics-2005-to-2019


CONTROLLED 
 

10 
 

expansion of CCUS technologies to understand how these options could be deployed at 
scale.  

Communication and Engagement   

Derbyshire’s councils cannot reduce Derbyshire’s emissions to net zero alone. This can only 

be achieved through coordinated and concerted effort from everyone – residents, 

businesses, academic, public, community and voluntary sectors.  

Derbyshire councils want to want to work with everyone in the county to: 

 Establish a mutual understanding of climate change and the risks that it poses too 

Derbyshire.  

 Establish a shared understanding of what could, and should, be done in Derbyshire 

to tackle climate change. 

 Give all individuals and groups the opportunity to shape how this challenge is 
addressed and play their part in reducing emissions.  

The way that the councils will engage and work with others will vary depending on the 

nature, scale and type of projects. For example, collective efforts between councils to 

decarbonise council buildings is unlikely to require a significant level of communication and 

involvement with wider groups and individuals, whereas projects relating to decarbonising 

homes across the county will require engagement across a wide number of groups and in 
various formats and levels of detail.    

The councils will ensure communication and engagement is meaningful and leads to 

outcomes and results. Effective engagement will also help to ensure communities benefit 

from actions taken to reduce emissions and make sure that the action taken to reduce 

emissions do not bring about inequalities or significantly increased costs for Derbyshire’s 
residents. 

Monitoring, Reviewing and Reporting  

To deliver this Strategy effectively, the councils will need to monitor progress of the county in 

reducing emissions, as well as progress on delivering actions to contribute towards 
achieving the Visions and Priorities set out in this document.   

During this Strategy period the councils will collaborate, on an annual basis, to: 

 Track annual BEIS emissions data for the county to understand the level of progress 

being made in reducing Derbyshire’s emissions. 

 Undertake a gap analysis of ambition versus action in terms of emissions reduction 

and collaborative climate change action.    

 Publish a summary update on progress on reducing emissions across Derbyshire, 
and progress against Strategy’s Visions and Priorities. 

This will ensure progress is being made and any necessary early interventions to address 

under performance are identified and implemented. This annual review will also take account 

of any policy, technological, economic and cultural developments and how they might 

influence and affect delivery and priorities. 

The supporting action plan will be reviewed and updated on a regular basis to ensure that 

the councils are continuing to develop the appropriate climate actions necessary to achieve 

our net zero targets in collaboration with other partners, stakeholders, and community 
members, and to respond to future technological and policy developments. 

Page 16



CONTROLLED 
 

11 
 

The councils will also continue to explore the wider co-benefits of climate action e.g. air 

quality improvements, improved health and wellbeing, biodiversity net gain, and social value. 

This will help to identify and communicate the benefits of climate action beyond emissions 

reductions. 

Action Plan – a separate document  

 

Page 17



CONTROLLED 
 

12 
 

Appendix 1: Total annual greenhouse gas emissions for Derbyshire for 20193.  

Carbon dioxide emissions for 2019 (in ktCO2)  

Borough Industry 
Total 

Commercial 

Total 
Public 
Sector 
Total 

Domestic 
Total 

Transport 
Total 

LULUCF 
Net 

Emission
s 

Grand 
Total 

Population Per 
Capita 

Emissions 
(t) 

Area Emissions 
per km2 

(kt) 

Amber 
Valley 

157.3 61.1 24.5 209.3 223.2 -12.5 662.9 128.1 5.2 265.4 2.5 

Bolsover 

 

461.6 33.5 13.1 157.4 327.5 -10.2 982.9 80.6 12.2 160.3 6.1 

Chesterfield 

 

54.5 52.2 27.9 170.7 145.0 -5.3 444.9 104.9 4.2 66.0 6.7 

Derbyshire 

Dales 

141.5 34.7 12.2 127.3 227.2 -42.3 500.7 72.3 6.9 795.3 0.6 

Erewash 

 

71.6 26.7 21.6 170.7 232.7 -4.0 519.4 115.4 4.5 109.6 4.7 

High Peak 

 

2,580.0 64.8 19.7 149.0 159.4 -19.4 2,953.4 92.7 31.9 540.3 5.5 

North East 

Derbyshire 

73.3 32.4 10.1 170.3 234.0 -21.0 499.1 101.5 4.9 275.6 1.8 

South 

Derbyshire 

126.6 44.3 11.7 163.3 327.1 -12.5 660.5 107.3 6.2 338.1 2.0 

Derbyshire 

(total) 

3,666.5 349.7 140.8 1,317.9 1,876.1 -127.1 7,223.9 802.7 9.0 2,550.8 2.8 

 

 

                                                                 
3
 UK local authority and regional carbon dioxide emissions national sta tistics: 2005 to 2019 

P
age 18

https://data.gov.uk/dataset/723c243d-2f1a-4d27-8b61-cdb93e5b10ff/uk-local-authority-and-regional-carbon-dioxide-emissions-national-statistics-2005-to-2019

	Agenda
	3 Minutes of the previous meeting
	6 Vision Derbyshire Climate Change Strategy

